U.S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
2296 Henderson Mill Road, NE

Suite 115

Atlanta, GA 30345

Phone: 770-493-6644 Fax: 770-493-7725

Citation and Notification of Penalty

To: Inspection Number: 1098903

CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc. Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015

and its successors Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

6575 Marshall Blvd

Lithonia, GA 30058

Inspection Site: The violation(s) described in this Citation and

6575 Marshal! Blvd Notification of Penalty is (are) alleged to have

Lithonia, GA 30058 occurred on or about the day(s) the inspection was
made unless otherwise indicated within the description
given below.

This Citation and Nofification of Penalty (this Citation) describes violations of the Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these violations. You must abate the
violations referred to in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the penalties proposed, unless within 15 working
days (excluding weekends and Federal holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty
you either call to schedule an informal conference (see paragraph below) or you mail a notice of contest to
the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above, Please refer to the enclosed booklet
(OSHA 3000) which outlines your rights and responsibilities and which should be read in conjunction with this
form. Issuance of this Citation does not constitute a finding that a violation of the Act has occurred unless there
is a failure to contest as provided for in the Act or, if contested, unless this Citation is affirmed by the Review

Commission or a court.

Posting - The law requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a
prominent place at or near the location of the violation(s) cited herein, or, if it is not practicable because of the
nature of the employer's operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employees. This Citation
must remain posted until the violation(s) cited herein has (have) been abated, or for 3 working days (excluding
weekends and Federal holidays), whichever is longer.

Informal Conference - An informal conference is not required. However, if you wish to have such a
conference you may request one with the Area Director during the 15 working day contest period. During such
an informal conference you may present any evidence or views which you believe would support an adjustment

to the citation(s) and/or penalty(ies).
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 1  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.24(h): Standard railings were not provided on the open side(s) of all exposed stairways
and platforms. Stair railings were not installed in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 1910.23.

On or about 10/13/2015 in the trailer repair shop at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA: Employees
were exposed to a fall hazard of up to about 9 feet to the lower level. The employer failed to install
midrails on both ends of the stairways leading to the platform used by the employees to access the top

of the trailers.
No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $2800.00

Sce pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation a-nd Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc,
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 2 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.26(c)(2)(vii): 1910.26(c)(2)(7): Ladders having defects were not marked and taken out of
service until repaired.

On or about 10/15/2015 in the trailer shop work area at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA: Employee
observed using a bent, broken, and damage A-Frame ladder that was about six feet to access and egress
inside of the trailer he was working on at the time of the inspection.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation
(using the CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition,
documentation demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification.
This documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the
equipment, photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilitics.

Citation and Notification of Penalty Page 7 of 20 OSHA-2



F il
L

U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item3 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.29(a)(4Xii): All scaffold casters were not provided with a positive wheel and/or swivel
lock to prevent movement. Ladder stand/scaffold did not have at least two (2) of the four (4) casters
and shall be of the swivel type.

On or about 10/13/2015 in the trailer repair shop and on-site at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA:
The manual propelled scaffolds used by the employees to access the top and side areas of the trailers at
heights up to 9 feet 4 inches were not equipped with proper casters to prevent movement.

1. Two black manual scaffold being used by the employees at the time of the inspection to install metal
material on the trailer was not equipped with the required casters,

2. One yellow manual scaffold used by the employees to work on the top and sides of the trailers was
not equipped with the required casters.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $4900.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Cilation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employce rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Netification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item4  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.132(a): Protective equipment was not used when necessary whenever hazards capable of
causing injury and impairment were encountered:

On or about 10/13/2015 in the trailer repair shop and on-site at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA:
Employees working atop trailers that were positioned inside of or contiguous to a building or other
structure at heights up to 12 feet 10 1/2 inches from ground level were not provided fall protection.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $4900.00

Sce pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Ttem 5  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.147(c){4)(i): Procedures were not developed, documented and utilized for the control of
potentially hazardous energy when employees were engaged in activities covered by this section:

On or about 10/13/2015 in the Maintenance Shop and on-site at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA:
Where employees were performing repairs, troubleshooting, services, and maintenance on the trucks
they were not provided or utilizes specific written energy control procedures to protect them from
being expose to crushing hazards,

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $4900.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penaity for information en employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name; CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 6  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.178(a)(6): The employer did not ensure that all nameplates and markings were in place:
On or about 10/13/2015 at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA: Employees operated powered
industrial trucks with nameplates that were damaged, faded, and not legible to identify the equipment's,
model, type, lift, and attachments capacity.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Natification of Penally for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 7 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.178(p)(1): Powered industrial truck(s) found to be in need of repair, defective, or in any
way unsafe had not been taken out of service until restored to safe operating condition(s):

On or about 10/13/2015 at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA: Where powered industrial trucks were
being operated by employees with unsafe tires and inoperative lights the employer failed to inspect and
take the powered industrial trucks out of service prior to use.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: _ $4200.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

The alleged violations below have been grouped because they involve similar or related hazards that
may increase the potential for injury or illness.

Citation 1_Jtem 8 a Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.184(e)(1): Alloy steel sling(s) did not have permanently affixed durable identification
stating size, grade, rated capacity, and reach:

On or about 10/13/2015 in the mechanical shop area at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA:
Employees were exposed to a struck-by hazard using the alloyed steel chain sling with a non-
indefinable identification tag, while lifting engines and other vehicle components.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this vielation
(using the CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition,
documentation demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification.
This documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the
equipment, photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $4900.00

Sec pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilitics.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 8 b Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.184(e)(3)(ii): Records of the most recent month in which each alloy steel chain sling was
thoroughly inspected were not available for examination:

On or about 10/13/2015 in the mechanical shop area at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA: Employer
failed to provide and make available inspections documents of the alloyed steel chains and slings being

used by the employees to lift engines and other components from the vehicles. Employees were
exposed to a struck-by hazard from the non-indefinable alloyed steel chains and chain slings.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(c), abatement certification is required for this violation (using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET).

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 9  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.242(b): Compressed air used for cleaning purposes was not reduced to less than 30 p.s.i.:

On or about 10/13/2015 in the Mechanicél, Trailer, and Body Shops at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia,
GA: Employees are exposed to a struck-by hazard while using compressed air at over 80 psi for
cleaning purposes.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation
(using the CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition,
documentation demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification.
This documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the
equipment, photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name; CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 10_ Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.253(b)(2)(iv): Valve protection caps, where cylinders were designed to accept caps, were
not always in place, hand-tight, except when cylinders were in use or connected for use:

On or about 10/13/2015 in the mechanical shop 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA: Acetylene
cylinder was stored with oxygen cylinders without a valve protection cap.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 11 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.253(b)(4)(iii): Oxygen cylinders in storage were not separated from fuel-gas cylinders or
combustible materials (especially oil or grease), a minimum distance of 20 feet (6.1 m) or by a
noncombustible barrier at least 5 feet (1.5 m) high having a fire-resistance rating of at least one-half

hour.

On or about 10/13/2015 in the Mechanical and Trailer Shops at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA:
Acetylene and oxygen cylinders were stored together in the following area.

1. Mechanical shop work area at the emergency exit and bay door there were two acetylene and two

oxygen cylinders stored together.
2. Trailer shop managers office behind his desk there were four acetylene and five oxygen cylinders

stored together.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation
(using the CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition,
documentation demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification.
This documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the
equipment, photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

Sce pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098903

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/15/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 2 Item 1  Type of Violation: Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.178(1)(4)(iii): An evaluation of each powered industrial truck operator's performance was
not being conducted at least once every three years:

On or about 10/13/2015 at 6575 Marshall Blvd in Lithonia, GA: Employees observed operating and
employees that have operated the powered industrial trucks in the past six months to lift crates,

vehicles, and other material were not trained and reevaluated at least once every three year.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(c), abatement certification is required for this violation (using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET).

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 03/25/2016
Proposed Penalty: $700.00

it

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor

Occupational Safety and Health Administration
2296 Henderson Mill Road, NE

Suite 115

Atlanta, GA 30345

Phone: 770-493-6644 Fax: 770-493-7725

INVOICE /
DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.

Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number 1098903
Citation 1, Serious $44100.00
Citation 2, Other-than-Serious $700.00
TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES $44800.00

To avoid additional charges, please remit payment promptly to this Area Office for the total amount of the
uncontested penalties summarized above. Make your check or money order payable to: "DOL-OSHA", Please
indicate OSHA's Inspection Number (indicated above) on the remittance. You can also make your payment
electronically on www.pay.gov. On the left side of the pay.gov homepage, you will see an option to Search
Public Forms. Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results, click on OSHA Penalty Payment Form. The
direct link is hitps://www.pay.gov/paygov/forms/formInstance.html?agencyFormId=53090334. You will
be required to enter your inspection number when making the payment. Payments can be made by credit card or
Automated Clearing House (ACH) using your banking information. Payments of $25,000 or more require a
Transaction ID, and also must be paid using ACH. If you require a Transaction ID, please contact the OSHA

Debt Collection Team at (202) 693-2170.

OSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check, money order, or
electronic payment for less than the full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these

restrictions or conditions do not exist.

If a personal check is issued, it will be converted into an electronic fund transfer (EFT). This means that our
bank will copy your check and use the account information on it to electronically debit your account for the
amount of the check. The debit from your account will then usually occur within 24 hours and will be shown on
your regular account statement. You will not receive your original check back. The bank will destroy your
original check, but will keep a copy of it. If the EFT cannot be completed because of insufficient funds or closed

Citation and Notification of Penalty Page 19 0f 20 OSHA-2



U.S. Department of Labor
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
2296 Henderson Mill Road, NE

Suite 115

Atlanta, GA 30345

Phone: 770-493-6644 Fax: 770-493-7725

Citation and Notification of Penalty

To: Inspection Number: 1098938

CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc. Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015

and its successors Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

6575 Marshall Blvd

Lithonia, GA 30058

Inspection Site: The violation(s) described in this Citation and

6575 Marshall Blvd Notification of Penalty is (are) alleged to have

Lithonia, GA 30058 occurred on or about the day(s) the inspection was
made unless otherwise indicated within the description
given below.

This Citation and Notification of Penalty (this Citation) describes violations of the Occupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970. The penalty(ies) listed herein is (are) based on these violations. You must abate the
violations referred to in this Citation by the dates listed and pay the penalties proposed, unless within 15 working
days (excluding weekends and Federal holidays) from your receipt of this Citation and Notification of Penalty
you either call to schedule an informal conference (see paragraph below) or you mail a notice of contest to
the U.S. Department of Labor Area Office at the address shown above. Please refer to the enclosed booklet
(OSHA 3000) which outlines your rights and responsibilities and which should be read in conjunction with this
form, Issuance of this Citation does not constitute a finding that a violation of the Act has occurred unless there
is a failure to contest as provided for in the Act or, if contested, unless this Citation is affirmed by the Review
Commission or a court.

Posting - The law requires that a copy of this Citation and Notification of Penalty be posted immediately in a
prominent place at or near the location of the violation(s) cited herein, or, if it is not practicable because of the
nature of the employer's operations, where it will be readily observable by all affected employees, This Citation
must remain posted until the violation(s) cited herein has (have} been abated, or for 3 working days (excluding
weekends and Federal holidays), whichever is longer.

Informal Conference - An informal conference is not required. However, if you wish to have such a
conference you may request one with the Area Director during the 15 working day contest period. During such
an informal conference you may present any evidence or views which you believe would support an adjustment
to the citation(s) and/or penaity(ies).
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Jtem 1 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.36(d)(1): Employee(s) were not able to open an exit route door from the inside at all
times without keys, tools, or special knowledge.

On or about October 13, 2015:

On the west end of the body shop bay area employees were exposed to smoke inhalation and fire
hazards when the lock on the emergency exit doors (back and side door) prevented employees from
exiting the building in the event of an emergency.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET),

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Bivd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item2 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.37(a)(3): Exit route(s) were not kept free and unobstructed:

On or about October 13, 2015:

On the west end of the body shop bay area employees were exposed to smoke inhalation and fire
hazards when the exit routes leading from the two emergency exit doors (back and side door) were
blocked by tires, vehicle parts and other debris and prevented employees from exiting the building in
the event of an emergency.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection
Proposed Penalty: $4900.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibifities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date; 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item3  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.37(b)(2): Each exit was not clearly visible and marked by a sign reading "Exit";

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees working in the mechanical shop were exposed to smoke and fire hazards where the exit sign
above the rear exit door was broken, damaged and removed.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records,

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penaity for information on employer and emplayee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item4 Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.37(b)(5): Each doorway or passage along an exit access that could be mistaken for an exit
was not marked "Not an Exit" or similar designation, or be identified by a sign indicating its actual use
(e.g. closet):

On or about October 13, 2015:

Employees working in the mechanical service shop were subjected to entrapment hazards. The door in
the front area that used to be an emergency exit is the shop manager's office and the door that leads
outside once you enter is kept locked. The door did not have a "Not an Exit" sign or "Office" sign
posted on it,

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection
Proposed Penalty: $2100.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Natification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

The alleged violations below have been grouped because they involve similar or related hazards that
may increase the potential for injury or illness.

Citation 1 Ttem 5 a Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.134(c)(1): A written respiratory protection program that included the provisions in 29
CFR 1910.134(c)(1)(i) - (ix) with worksite specific procedures was not established and implemented
for required respirator use:

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees are exposed to inhalation hazards when performing paint and body work on vehicles. The
employer requires the use of a respirator, but had not established and implemented a written respiratory

protection program.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 5 b Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.134(e)(1): The employer did not provide a medical evaluation to determine the
employee's ability to use a respirator, before the employee was fit tested or required to use the
respirator in the workplace:

On or about October 13, 2015:

Employees performing spray painting and foam operations are exposed to inhalation hazards and are
required to wear a respirator. The employer did not provide a medical evaluation prior to the required
use of their respirator.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: {098933

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailei' Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 5 ¢ Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.134(f)(2): Employee(s) using tight-fitting facepiece respirators were not fit tested prior to
initial use of the respirator:

On or about October 13, 2015:

Employees performing spray painting and foam operations are exposed to inhalation hazards and are
required to wear a 3M half face respirator. The employer had not provided respirator fit testing for
employees.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatemnent is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016

See pages I through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation | Item 5 d Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.134(k)(1): The employer did not provide effective training to employees who were
required to use respirators:

On or about 15:

Employees working in the prep stalls near the paint booths and the trailer shop foam sprayer are
exposed to inhalation hazards such as but not limited to dust particles, and isocyanates respectively.
The employees are required to wear a 3M half face 5000 series respirator but had not been provided
with training on the respirator.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/ 14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation | Jtem 6  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.157(c)(1): Portable fire extinguishers were not mounted, located and identified so that
they were readily accessible without subjecting the employees to injuries:

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees working near the paint booths were exposed to tripping and struck-by hazards in an
emergency where the fire extinguisher was blocked by items such as but not limited to a ladder,

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this jtem.

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection
Proposed Penalty: $2100.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation | Item 7  Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.157(c)(4): Portable fire extinguishers were not maintained in a fully charged and
operable condition.

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees working in the paint and body shop of the facility were exposed to fire hazards where three
fire extinguishers in the body shop were not properly charged and maintained.

1) A fire extinguisher located near the bay door was not charged and in place
2) A fire extinguisher near the back door of the body shop was not charged and in place
3) A fire extinguisher located near the bay door was not maintained in that the pin had been pulled

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection
Proposed Penalty: $2100.00

Sce pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspeetion Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

The alleged violations below have been grouped because they involve similar or related hazards that
may increase the potential for injury or illness.

Citation 1 Item 8 a Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200(e)(1): The employer did not develop, implement, and/or maintain at the workplace
a written hazard communication program which describes how the criteria specified in 29 CFR

1910.1200(f), (g), and (h) will be met:

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees working in the production areas of the CS Truck & Trailer facility are exposed to chemicals

such as, but not limited to:
a) Paint booth - High Solids Single Stage Polyurethane and Hardener, 5.0 Basecoat, SS Solvent (paint

thinner)

b) Body shop - 3M Dynatron Dynalite Fillers, paint thinner, alcohol, resins, bondo, adhesive cleaners
¢) Trailer shop - Froth Pak Sealer, paint thinner, aluminum bright cleaner, HET Premium Wash Thinner
d) Mechanical shop - Diesel fuel, oils and lubricants, coolants/antifreeze, transmission fluids,

acetylene, oxygen, brake cleaner
The employer had not established a written hazard communication program.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. Thijs
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records,

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016
Proposed Penalty: $3500.00

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.

Citation and Notification of Penalty Page 16 of 25 OSHA-2



U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 8 b Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200¢e)(1)(i): The employer did not compile a list of the hazardous chemicals known to
be present using a product identifier that was referenced on the appropriate safety data sheet.

On or about October 13, 2015:

Employees working in the trailer shop, mechanical services shop, and the body shop of the facility are
exposed to chemicals such as, but not limited to primers, resins, lacquer thinner, adhesive cleaners and
sealers, rubbing compound, fiberglass filler, Froth-Pak foam and hardener, aluminum cleaner, diesel
fuel, oils and lubricants, antifreeze, and cylinders of acetylene, nitrogen and oxygen. The employer did
not have an inventoried list of chemicals used in the workplace.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET).

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016

Sce pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site; 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 8 ¢ Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200(g)(8): The employer did not maintain in the workplace copies of the required
safety data sheets for each hazardous chemical

On or about October 13, 2015:

Employees working in the mechanical services shop of the facility are exposed to chemicals such as,
but not limited to brake cleaner, diesel fuel, motor oil, transmission fluid, antifreeze, gear lubricant, and
cylinders of acetylene, and oxygen. The employer did not maintain safety data sheets for these
chemicals.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records,

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016

Sce pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/ 14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Bivd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Ttern 8 d Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200¢h)(1): Employees were not provided effective information and training on
hazardous chemicals in their work area at the time of their initial assignment and whenever a new
hazard that the employees had not been previously trained about was introduced into their work area,

On or about October 13, 2015:

Employees working in the trailer shop, mechanical services shop, and the body shop of the facility are
exposed to chemicals such as, but not limited to flammables, corrosives, isocyanates, and solvents
(primers, resins, lacquer thinner, adhesive cleaners and sealers, rubbing compound, fiberglass filler,
Froth-Pak foam and hardener, aluminum cleaner, diesel fuel, oils and lubricants, antifreeze, and
cylinders of acetylene, nitrogen and oxygen, etc.). The employer did not provide training on the
chemicals used in the workplace.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.1 9(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records.

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 1 Item 8 e Type of Violation: Serious

29 CFR 1910.1200(f)(6): The employer used written materials, such as signs, placards, process sheets,
or batch tickets in lieu of affixing labels to individual stationary process containers that failed to
identify the container(s) to which they were applicable and did not convey the information required by
29 CFR 1910.1200(£)(5):

On or about October 13, 2015:

Employees working in the mechanical services shop of the facility are exposed to chemicals such as,
but not limited to brake cleaner, diese! fuel, motor oil, transmission fluid, antifreeze, gear lubricant, and
cylinders of acetylene, and oxygen. The employer did not ensure all containers were labeled.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this item.

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection

Sce pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/ 14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 2 Ttem 1  Type of Violation: Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.134(c)(2)(0): Respirator users were not provided with the information contained in
Appendix D to 29 CFR 1910.134 when the employer determined that any voluntary respirator use was
permissible;

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees working in the facility and wearing an N95 filtering face, 3M respirator, voluntarily were
not provided with training or information in Appendix D of the respirator protection standard,

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.19(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION WORKSHEET),

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016
Proposed Penalty: $0.00

See pages | through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Labor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation2 Item2  Type of Violation: Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1910.1 34(c)(2)(ii): The employer did not establish and implement those elements of a written
program necessary to ensure that any employee using a respirator voluntarily was medically able to use
that respirator, and that the respirator was cleaned, stored, and maintained so that its use does not
present a health hazard to the user.

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees working in the facility and wearing an elastomeric half face respirator, 3M 5000 series,
voluntarily were not provided with a medical evaluation to ensure that they were medically able to

wear a respirator.

In accordance with 29 CFR 1903.1 9(d), abatement certification is required for this violation (Using the
CERTIFICATION OF CORRECTIV E ACTION WORKSHEET), and in addition, documentation
demonstrating that abatement is complete must be included with your certification. This
documentation may include, but is not limited to, evidence of the purchase or repair of the equipment,
photographic or video evidence of abatement, or other written records,

ABATEMENT DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR THIS ITEM

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: 04/01/2016
Proposed Penalty: $0.00

Sce pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Notification of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities.
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U.S. Department of Lahor Inspection Number: 1098938

Occupational Safety and Health Administration Inspection Date(s): 10/13/2015 - 10/14/2015
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016

Citation and Notification of Penalty

Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc,
Inspection Site: 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058

Citation 2 Item 3 Type of Violation: Other-than-Serious

29 CFR 1919. 157(e)(2): Portable fire extinguishers were not visually inspected at least monthly:

On or about October 13, 2015:
Employees working in the paint and body shop, trailer shop, mechanical services and other areas of the
facility were exposed to fire hazards where fire extinguishers were not visually inspected monthly.

No abatement certification or documentation is required for this jtem,

Date By Which Violation Must be Abated: Corrected During Inspection
Proposed Penalty: $0.00

Williash C. Fulc lr
AreaD ector)

See pages 1 through 4 of this Citation and Noti fication of Penalty for information on employer and employee rights and responsibilities,
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U.S. Department of Labor

Occupational Safety and Health Administration
2296 Henderson Mill Road, NE

Suite 115

Atlanta, GA 30345

Phone: 770-493-6644 Fax: 770-493-7725

INVOICE /

DEBT COLLECTION NOTICE
Company Name: CS Truck and Trailer Repair Services, Inc.
Inspection Site; 6575 Marshall Blvd, Lithonia, GA 30058
Issuance Date: 03/08/2016
Summary of Penalties for Inspection Number _ 1098938
Citation 1, Serious $25200.00
Citation 2, Other-than-Serious 50.00
TOTAL PROPOSED PENALTIES $25200.00

To avoid additional charges, please remit payment promptly to this Area Office for the total amount of the
uncontested penaities summarized above. Make your check or money order payable to: "DOL-OSHA". Please
indicate OSHA's Inspection Number (indicated above) on the remittance. You can also make your payment
electronically on www.pay.gov. On the left side of the pay.gov homepage, you will see an option to Search
Public Forms. Type "OSHA" and click Go. From the results, click on OSHA Penalty Payment Form, The
direct link is https://www.nav.gov/paygov/forms/fonnInstance.html?agenchonnId=53090334. You will
be required to enter your inspection number when making the payment, Payments can be made by credit card or
Automated Clearing House (ACH) using your banking information. Payments of $25,000 or more require a
Transaction ID, and also must be paid using ACH. If you require a Transaction ID, please contact the OSHA
Debt Collection Team at (202) 693-2170.

OSHA does not agree to any restrictions or conditions or endorsements put on any check, money order, or
electronic payment for less than the full amount due, and will cash the check or money order as if these

restrictions or conditions do not exist.

If a personal check is issued, it will be converted into an electronic fund transfer (EFT). This means that our
bank will copy your check and use the account information on it to electronically debit your account for the
amount of the check. The debit from your account will then usually occur within 24 hours and will be shown on
your regular account statement. You will not receive your original check back. The bank will destroy your
original check, but will keep a copy of it. If the EFT cannot be completed because of insufficient funds or closed
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